

TOMMY WATERS CHAIR & PRESIDING OFFICER ESTHER KIA'ĂINA VICE CHAIR RADIANT CORDERO FLOOR LEADER TYLER DOS SANTOS-TAM VAL A. OKIMOTO CALVIN K.Y. SAY AUGIE TULBA ANDRIA TUPOLA MATT WEYER

# JOURNAL

HONOLULU CITY COUNCIL

KE KANIHELA O KE KALANA O HONOLULU

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

REGULAR MEETING 15TH SESSION WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2023

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 3<sup>RD</sup> FLOOR, HONOLULU HALE HONOLULU, HAWAI'I 96813

*Note:* A copy of the video of the full proceedings of this meeting may be requested by calling the City Clerk's Office at (808) 768-5822.

# CALL TO ORDER

Pursuant to adjournment, the regular meeting of the City Council was called to order by the Chair and Presiding Officer, Tommy Waters, at 10:15 a.m.

# ROLL CALL

Roll call showed the following Councilmembers present:

Councilmembers Cordero, Dos Santos-Tam, Kia'āina, Okimoto, Say, Tulba, Tupola, Weyer, Waters – 9.

# **INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS**

Councilmember Cordero welcomed the nominees for the Boards and Commissions as well as the members of the Administration.

# APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Minutes of the 14th Session be approved, subject to corrections by Councilmembers within 30 days. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

There was no public testimony.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

# ORDER OF THE DAY

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-220, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 287

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF MR. VINCE OTSUKA TO SERVE ON THE BOARD OF REVIEW III FOR REAL PROPERTY TAX APPEALS OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU.

Councilmember Cordero moved that Committee Report 287 and Resolution 23-220, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Weyer.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Vince Otsuka (General comment)
- 2. Angela Young (Support)

Committee Report 287 and Resolution 23-220, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-594 Testimony on Resolution 23-220

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-218, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 309

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF JOSEPH BOCK TO SERVE ON THE LIQUOR COMMISSION OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Committee Report 309 and Resolution 23-218, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

The following individual testified:

Joseph Bock (General comment)

Committee Report 309 and Resolution 23-218, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-592 Testimony on Resolution 23-218

## ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-219 - COMMITTEE REPORT 310

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF KEVIN SAKAMOTO TO SERVE ON THE LIQUOR COMMISSION OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Committee Report 310 and Resolution 23-219 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Kevin Sakamoto (General comment)
- 2. Angela Young (Support)

Committee Report 310 and Resolution 23-219 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-593 Testimony on Resolution 23-219

## ADOPTION RESOLUTION 23-221, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 311

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF KAI NANI KRAUT TO SERVE ON THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Committee Report 311 and Resolution 23-221, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

There was no public testimony.

Councilmember Weyer stated that it is evident that the nominee clearly qualifies to remain on the Commission based on the discussion they had with her in Committee.

Committee Report 311 and Resolution 23-221, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-579 Testimony on Resolution 23-221

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-223 – COMMITTEE REPORT 317

RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF JEANNINE SOUKI TO SERVE ON THE POLICE COMMISSION OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 317 and Resolution 23-223 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

The following individual testified:

Jeannine Souki (General comment)

Chair Waters acknowledged the presence of the Mayor and the Managing Director.

Councilmember Kia'āina thanked the nominee for her commitment to public service and stated that Ms. Souki will be an excellent appointment to the Police Commission. Speaking in the nominee's native language, Councilmember Kia'āina stated, "This is a blessing I am offering to you for this honor."

Councilmember Okimoto expressed her gratefulness for having the opportunity to meet with the nominee. She thanked Ms. Souki for her willingness to serve on the Police Commission and looks forward to working with her.

Committee Report 317 and Resolution 23-223 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-580 Testimony on Resolution 23-223

# PUBLIC HEARING/RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION 23-237

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF OVERT VIDEO MONITORING IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU TO PREVENT AND DETER GENERAL CRIMINAL ACTIVITY AND ACHIEVE THE LEGITIMATE LAW ENFORCEMENT OBJECTIVE AND LEGITIMATE PUBLIC PURPOSE OF ENSURING A SAFE AND SECURE 2023 HONOLULU MARATHON EVENT.

There was no public testimony.

Chair Waters referred Resolution 23-237 to the Committee on Public Safety for further discussion.

Related communication:

M-585 Testimony on Resolution 23-237

### PUBLIC HEARING/RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION 23-244 AND RESOLUTION 23-244, PROPOSED CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 299

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A PLAN REVIEW USE (PRU) PERMIT FOR THE UPDATE OF THE UNIVERSITY OF HAWAI'I AT MĀNOA CAMPUS MASTER PLAN IN MĀNOA, O'AHU.

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 299 be adopted and Resolution 23-244 and Resolution 23-244, Proposed CD1 be referred to the Committee on Zoning. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Jan Gouveia, University of Hawai'i (M-589) (Support)
- 2. Nathaniel Kinney, Hawai'i Regional Council of Carpenters (M-589) (Oppose)

Committee Report 299 was adopted and Resolution 23-244 and Resolution 23-244, Proposed CD1 were referred to the Committee on Zoning.

AYES: CORDERO, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 8. NOES: None. ABSENT: DOS SANTOS-TAM – 1.

Related communication:

M-589 Testimony on Resolution 23-244

# PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND READING

BILL 56 – COMMITTEE REPORT 305

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO A COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED FINANCING PROGRAM.

Councilmember Weyer moved that Committee Report 305 be adopted and Bill 56 pass second reading. Seconded by Councilmember Kia'āina.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Michael Yaki, Petros PACE Finance, LLC (M-576) (Support)
- 2. Gwen Yamamoto Lau (M-576) (Support)
- 3. Austin Salcedo (M-576) (General comment)
- 4. Clifton Kellogg, C-PACE Alliance, Inc. (M-576) (Support)
- 5. Genevieve Sherman, Nuveen Green Capital (M-576) (Support)
- 6. Kalei Salcedo (Oppose)
- 7. Angela Young (General comment)
- 8. Choon James (General comment)

Councilmember Tupola voiced her support of the Salcedos who testified today and who are huge community advocates in Waianae. She stated her support for the Bill and noted that the Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) program is only one solution to financing. Councilmember Tupola suggested that a Memorandum of Understanding be executed so that there is clarity of what the City is in charge of versus what Hawaii Green Infrastructure Authority is in charge of.

Councilmember Say stated his support of the measure. He suggested that when the measure goes back to Committee, there should be a discussion on whether there will be a special assessment property tax increase on top of the present assessment. Councilmember Say stated that another issue that needs to be addressed is the financing of the fund. He stated that the Legislature passes the mandate to the City and stated for the record that it is not fair for the City to pick up the tab for every cesspool project on O'ahu.

Committee Report 305 was adopted and Bill 56 passed second reading.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-576 Testimony on Bill 56

# THIRD READING

BILL 6, CD2, FD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 291

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO PROFESSIONAL SELF-CERTIFICATION.

The following amendments were handcarried to the meeting:

Bill 6, CD2, Proposed FD1 (OCS2023-0997/10/30/2023 11:14 AM) Bill 6, CD2, Proposed FD1 (OCS2023-0998/10/30/2023 3:23 PM)

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 291 be adopted and Bill 6, CD1 pass third reading as amended to CD2. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Nathaniel Kinney, Hawai'i Regional Council of Carpenters (M-586) (Oppose)
- 2. Angela Young, CARES (General comment)

Councilmember Kia'āina gave a brief background on Bill 7 as presented at the Zoning Committee (D-606). She stated that she cannot vote for a policy involving public health and safety when other developers have raised parity issues over affordable housing projects that get special treatment. Councilmember Kia'āina stated that she would like to focus on the building permit process and improve the existing third-party review process. She stated that her amendment version ending in 997 would remove Chapter 32 rental housing projects from the list of eligible projects that can use self-certification and the amendment version ending in 998 would mitigate some of her concerns by allowing self-certification for Chapter 32 projects if the certified professional has previously obtained at least two building permits and one certificate of occupancy for other Chapter 32 projects.

Councilmember Say stated that he understood the concerns of Councilmember Kia'āina. He stated that if self-certification is incorporated into Bill 7, the Administration will have third-party review, special assignment investigations, and self-certification. He stated that the Bill includes a provision that the building official will be promulgating rules. Councilmember Say suggested giving the Bill a chance since a \$10 million grant program and the extension of Bill 7 was adopted.

Councilmember Weyer noted that both amendments are reasonable and would support either of them.

Councilmember Cordero stated that she would like to see the amendment version ending in 998 move forward.

Councilmember Tupola stated that she believes that the Department of Planning and Permitting (DPP) would prefer self-certification over what is currently written in the law because the current law states that in 90 days if the Building Code reviewer does not approve the permit, then it is automatically approved but DPP does not follow that. She stated that self-certification would be better because the permit would still have to go back

to the DPP to get the final permit approved. Councilmember Tupola stated that she supports the current draft and believes that whatever happens it will be resolved in the Administrative Rules.

Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam stated that the City needs to be careful not to allow abuse of the self-certification program. He believes there is room for self-certification to be utilized for Chapter 32 projects but does not want to see it abused. He stated that the amendment version ending in 998 is very reasonable for the people who have a track record of following the rules, who have gotten permits in, who have gotten to a certificate of occupancy and have proven themselves. Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam stated that he would support the amendment version ending in 998.

Councilmember Kia'āina thanked all councilmembers for the discussion. She explained that her community in Kailua has a Bill 7 project and expressed concern that they do not have an avenue to voice their concerns and she explained to them that the DPP has the sole administrative authority to make decisions.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Bill be amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0997/10/30/2023 11:14 AM). Seconded by Councilmember Weyer. Councilmember Kia'āina explained the FD1 amendment.

Councilmember Cordero stated that she prefers the amendment version ending in 998.

Councilmember Weyer stated that the amendment version ending in 998 provides a balance but he would prefer supporting the amendment version ending in 997 because of the information that he has and the safety concerns.

Councilmember Okimoto stated that she is leaning towards the amendment version ending in 998 but would like Councilmember Kia'āina to clarify the difference between the two amendments.

Councilmember Kia'āina stated that she proposed both amendments for discussion. She noted that the amendment version ending in 997 would remove the Bill 7 projects which represents what her community would like. She noted that if that amendment failed she should offer the amendment version ending in 998.

Councilmember Tupola stated that she prefers the amendment version ending in 998. She stated that Bill 7 should be amended to address the concerns of the community not having input. Councilmember Tupola stated that there are still underlying concerns that both amendments may not resolve. She noted that she spoke with DPP and they are willing to incorporate changes into the Administrative Rules as well.

Bill 6, CD2 failed to be amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0997/10/30/2023 11:14 AM) due to lack of a majority vote.

AYES: KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO\*, WEYER – 3. NOES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WATERS - 6.

\*Councilmember Okimoto voted aye with reservations.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Bill be amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0998/10/30/2023 3:23 PM). Seconded by Councilmember Weyer. Councilmember Kia'āina explained the FD1 amendment.

Councilmember Say voiced his opposition to the measure. He stated that it is difficult when the permit is not approved and then apply for self-certification. Councilmember Say read portions of the amendment. He stated that the goals and objectives for the Zoning Chair was to address the 22,000 projects with another tool for the DPP. He noted that there is no enforcement but has encouraged his community to call if they see a problem so that an inspector can go out and investigate. He stated that the measure gives the DPP another tool to promote the development of affordable housing for the people of O'ahu.

In response to councilmembers, Dawn Takeuchi Apuna, Director, Department of Planning and Permitting (DPP) stated that:

- From the Department's perspective, the self-certification program should allow the most qualified person based on their track record with the Department. Regardless of the types of projects, the DPP would want people to have a proven track record, that they will do their job properly, and can be trusted that they will certify based on their experience and their expertise.
- The self-certification allows those who are not approved by the 90-day requirement to move forward.
- A robust program that weeds out the best would allow the DPP to rely on them to do the right thing. The DPP will have more stringent requirements to ensure that they are doing their job properly through the program.
- The DPP will decide what licensed architects or engineers can self-certify and they would need a minimum of one certificate of occupancy granted and two building permits granted. The Department may increase the requirements.

Bill 6, CD2 was amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0998/10/30/2023 3:23 PM).

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO\*, WEYER, WATERS\* - 6.

NOES: SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA – 3.

\*Councilmembers Okimoto and Waters voted aye with reservations.

Council Rule 19.G relating to 48-hour notice was waived

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Councilmember Tupola stated that she hopes that with the passage of the Bill, the rules will also be passed. She noted that severe steps needs to be taken to get more DPP code review workers so that the time to process the permits can be reduced.

Committee Report 291 was adopted and Bill 6, CD2, FD1 passed third reading.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA\*, OKIMOTO\*, SAY\*, TULBA\*, TUPOLA\*, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

\*Councilmembers Kia'āina, Okimoto, Say, Tulba, and Tupola voted aye with reservations.

Related communication:

M-586 Testimony on Bill 6

### **THIRD READING** BILL 47, CD1, FD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 304

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO RECYCLING.

The following amendment was posted on the agenda:

Bill 47, CD1, Proposed FD1

Councilmember Weyer moved that Committee Report 304 be adopted and Bill 47 pass third reading as amended to CD1. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

Councilmember Weyer moved that the Bill be amended to the posted FD1. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero. Councilmember Weyer explained the FD1 amendment.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (M-582) (Support)

Bill 47, CD1 was amended to the posted FD1.

AYES: CORDERO, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 8. NOES: None. ABSENT: DOS SANTOS-TAM – 1.

Committee Report 304 was adopted and Bill 47, CD1, FD1 passed third reading.

AYES: CORDERO, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 8. NOES: None. ABSENT: DOS SANTOS-TAM – 1.

Related communication:

M-582 Testimony on Bill 47

### **FIRST READING**

BILL 60

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO REAL PROPERTY TAXATION.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Bill 60 pass first reading. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

There was no public testimony.

Bill 60 passed first reading.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-590 Testimony on Bill 60

## FIRST READING BILL 61

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO EXCEPTIONAL TREES.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Bill 61 pass first reading. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young (Support)

Bill 61 passed first reading.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-583 Testimony on Bill 61

# FIRST READING

BILL 62

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO FIRE SAFETY.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Bill 62 pass first reading. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Angela Young (General comment)
- 2. James Manaku, Sr. (General comment)

Bill 62 passed first reading.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-577 Testimony on Bill 62

## ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-240, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 288

RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE CITY ADMINISTRATION TO PRESENT TO THE CITY COUNCIL BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS THAT ADDRESS LONG-TERM EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS NO LATER THAN 120 DAYS PRIOR TO THE END OF EACH FISCAL YEAR.

Councilmember Cordero moved that Committee Report 288 and Resolution 23-240 as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Weyer.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 288 and Resolution 23-240, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-250, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 289

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS.

Councilmember Cordero moved that Committee Report 289 and Resolution 23-250 as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Weyer.

Committee Report 289 and Resolution 23-250, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

## ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-251 - COMMITTEE REPORT 290

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE TRANSFER OF FUNDS.

Councilmember Cordero moved that Committee Report 290 and Resolution 23-251 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Weyer.

There was no public testimony.

Councilmember Tupola thanked the Department of Community Services for their on-going work and for making sure that they service all Council districts.

Committee Report 290 and Resolution 23-251 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-202

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACQUISITION OF EASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC USE FOR THE ROCK SLIDE MITIGATIVE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE VICINITY OF PACIFIC HEIGHTS ROAD SITE 070G, LOCATED AT KEWALO, PAUOA, HONOLULU, O'AHU, HAWAI'I, AND DETERMINING AND DECLARING THE NECESSITY OF THE ACQUISITION BY EMINENT DOMAIN.

Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam moved that Resolution 23-202 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

Resolution 23-202 was adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-584 Testimony on Resolution 23-202

## ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-206, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 296

RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA MAJOR PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE NEW CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED DWELLING AND ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT, AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS AT 10 KAMANI KAI PLACE, KAILUA, O'AHU.

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 296 and Resolution 23-206, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 296 and Resolution 23-206, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-238, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 297

RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA MAJOR PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR PHASED IMPROVEMENTS TO THE TOM MOFFATT WAIKĪKĪ SHELL IN WAIKĪKĪ, OʻAHU.

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 297 and Resolution 23-238, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

Committee Report 297 and Resolution 23-238, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

## ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-242, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 298

RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA MAJOR PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED DWELLING AND IMPROVEMENTS TO AN EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED DWELLING UNIT IN HAWAI'I KAI, O'AHU.

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 298 and Resolution 23-242, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 298 and Resolution 23-242, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 8. NOES: None.

ABSENT: CORDERO – 1.

### ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-253, CD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 300

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 18-245, CD1, FD1, AS AMENDED BY RESOLUTION 21-115, CD1, TO FURTHER EXTEND THE DEADLINE TO OBTAIN A DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR A RURAL COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL CENTER AND ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS IN PŪPŪKEA, OʻAHU

Councilmember Say moved that Committee Report 300 and Resolution 23-253, as amended to CD1 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Dos Santos-Tam.

The following individuals testified:

- 1. Larry McElheny (M-581) (Oppose)
- 2. Denise Antolini (M-581) (Oppose)
- 3. Alan Lennard (M-581) (Oppose)
- 4. Camron Hurt, Common Cause of Hawai'i (General comment)
- 5. Blake McElheny (M-581) (Oppose)
- 6. Terrence Lee (Support)
- 7. Senator Kurt Fevella (M-581) (Oppose)
- 8. Melissa Ginelle (M-581) (Support)

In response to councilmembers, Dawn Takeuchi Apuna, Director, Department of Planning and Permitting (DPP) stated that:

- She is aware of the settlement agreement and there are three parties working together.
- DPP is obligated to comply with all the terms in the settlement agreement.
- There are provisions that require a certain number of food trucks in the future.
- The City is complying with the settlement agreement with regards to the retail mix.
- She believes that there will be compliance but as of now the tenant mix has not yet been determined.
- An Environmental Impact Statement and an Environmental Assessment were done for the project.
- The North Shore Sustainable Communities Plan was created by DPP.
- She heard the suggestion for a first responder facility and DPP is open to that discussion.

Councilmember Weyer thanked the Honolulu Emergency Services Department, the Department of Land Management, and Ocean Safety for their open discussion on having a first responder facility. He looks forward to more conversations with the community. Councilmember Weyer stated that he will be voting in opposition to the Bill as he did in the Zoning Committee because he believes that each community should have a say. He

noted that most of the testimony states that they want things to stay the same and they want their job to be maintained. Councilmember Weyer stated that the Resolution would allow the developer to continue pursuing their building permit so they can begin construction.

Chair Waters suggested looking into the Clean Water and Natural Lands fund because there is money in the budget.

Committee Report 300 and Resolution 23-253, CD1 as amended were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WATERS – 8. NOES: WEYER – 1.

Related communication:

M-581 Testimony on Resolution 23-253

At this juncture, there being no objections from the 9 members present, the Chair considered Resolution 23-222 on page 19, Resolutions 23-226 and 23-246 on page 20, Resolution 23-213 on page 22, and Resolution 23-266 on page 25 of the agenda.

### ADOPTION

### RESOLUTION 23-222 – COMMITTEE REPORT 316

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF \$85,000 TO THE CITY FROM THE WAIKĪKĪ BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSOCIATION (WBIDA) FOR THE HONOLULU POLICE DEPARTMENT, DISTRICT 6, TO ADDRESS VARIOUS ILLEGAL ACTIVITIES.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 316 and Resolution 23-222 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

Committee Report 316 and Resolution 23-222 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WATERS – 8. NOES: None. ABSENT: WEYER – 1.

Related communication:

CC-276 Disclosure of Interest Statement submitted by Councilmember Tupola.

### ADOPTION RESOLUTION 23-226 – COMMITTEE REPORT 318

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A MONETARY GIFT OF \$15,700 TO THE CITY FROM THE DEPUTIES FOR THE HONOLULU POLICE DEPARTMENT'S LAW ENFORCEMENT EXPLORER PROGRAM.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 318 and Resolution 23-226 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 318 and Resolution 23-226 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, TULBA, TUPOLA, WATERS – 7. NOES: None. ABSENT: SAY, WEYER – 2.

Related communication:

CC-276 Disclosure of Interest Statement submitted by Councilmember Tupola.

# ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-246 - COMMITTEE REPORT 319

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF \$4,000 TO THE CITY FROM THE DEPUTIES FOR THE HONOLULU FIRE DEPARTMENT (HFD) SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 319 and Resolution 23-246 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 319 and Resolution 23-246 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIAʿĀINA, OKIMOTO, TULBA, TUPOLA, WATERS – 7. NOES: None. ABSENT: SAY, WEYER – 2.

## ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-213 - COMMITTEE REPORT 315

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF OF POLICE OF THE HONOLULU POLICE DEPARTMENT TO APPLY FOR AND TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE BUREAU OF JUSTICE ASSISTANCE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, FOR FUNDS FROM THE EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM FY2023 LOCAL SOLICITATION.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 315 and Resolution 23-213 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

There was no public testimony.

Committee Report 315 and Resolution 23-213 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

CC-276 Disclosure of Interest Statement submitted by Councilmember Tupola.

## ADOPTION RESOLUTION 23-266

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF THANKSGIVING DAY MEALS VALUED AT \$16,500 TO THE CITY FROM THE HONOLULU FIREFIGHTERS FOUNDATION (HFF) FOR ON-DUTY HONOLULU FIRE DPEARTMENT (HFD) PERSONNEL.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Resolution 23-266 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

There was no public testimony.

Resolution 23-266 was adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-588 Testimony on Resolution 23-266

# RECESS/RECONVENE

At 1:12 p.m., the Chair called for a recess as noted on the agenda. With 9 members present, the Chair reconvened the meeting at 2:07 p.m.

The Chair returned to the agenda order.

# ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-224 – COMMITTEE REPORT 301

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF A PARAGON CERAMIC KILN VALUED AT \$6,900 TO THE CITY FROM THE KOKO HEAD POTTERS FOR KOKO HEAD DISTRICT PARK.

Councilmember Tulba moved that Committee Report 301 and Resolution 23-224 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Okimoto.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Committee Report 301 and Resolution 23-224 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-245 - COMMITTEE REPORT 302

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF A SHADE STRUCTURE FOR THE PENGUIN EXHIBIT, VALUED AT \$6,851.30, TO THE CITY FROM THE HONOLULU ZOO SOCIETY FOR THE HONOLULU ZOO.

Councilmember Tulba moved that Committee Report 302 and Resolution 23-245 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Okimoto.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, Rescue of Animal Rights (Support)

Committee Report 302 and Resolution 23-245 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

# ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-247 – COMMITTEE REPORT 303

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF A PARTITION TO THE ORANGUTAN DAY PEN, VALUED AT \$25,300.00 TO THE CITY FROM THE HONOLULU ZOO SOCIETY FOR THE HONOLULU ZOO.

Councilmember Tulba moved that Committee Report 303 and Resolution 23-247 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Okimoto.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, Rescue of Animal Rights (Support)

Committee Report 303 and Resolution 23-247 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-248 - COMMITTEE REPORT 306

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF TRAVEL, LODGING AND MEAL EXPENSES VALUED AT \$1,437.50 TO THE CITY FROM THE URBAN SUSTAINABILITY DIRECTORS NETWORK ("USDN") FOR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF CLIMATE CHANGE, SUSTAINABILITY AND RESILIENCY TO ATTEND THE 2023 USDN ANNUAL MEETING IN NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA FROM OCTOBER 22-25, 2023.

Councilmember Weyer moved that Committee Report 306 and Resolution 23-248 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Kia'āina.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Committee Report 306 and Resolution 23-248 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# ADOPTION RESOLUTION 23-254 – COMMITTEE REPORT 307

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF TRAVEL, LODGING AND MEAL EXPENSES VALUED AT \$3,247 TO THE CITY FROM THE ASPEN INSTITUTE FOR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE OFFICE OF CLIMATE CHANGE, SUSTAINABILITY AND RESILIENCY TO ATTEND THE 2023 BLOOMBERG CITYLAB IN WASHINGTON, D.C FROM OCTOBER 18-20, 2023.

Councilmember Weyer moved that Committee Report 307 and Resolution 23-254 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Kia'āina.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Committee Report 307 and Resolution 23-254 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-258 – COMMITTEE REPORT 313

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF TRAVEL, LODGING, REGISTRATION FEE AND MEALS VALUED AT \$2,186 TO THE CITY FROM NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES (NLC) FOR THE DATA SPECIALIST OF THE OFFICE OF ECONOMIC REVITALIZATION TO ATTEND THE 2023 NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES SUMMIT IN ATLANTA, GEORGIA FROM NOVEMBER 15-18, 2023.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Committee Report 313 and Resolution 23-258 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Committee Report 313 and Resolution 23-258 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

## ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-255, FD1 – COMMITTEE REPORT 312

RESOLUTION COMMEMORATING THE 30TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE ENACTMENT OF PUBLIC LAW 103-150, THE "APOLOGY RESOLUTION."

The following amendment was handcarried to the meeting:

Resolution 23-255, Proposed FD1 (OCS2023-1003/10/31/2023 2:49 PM)

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Committee Report 312 and Resolution 23-255 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Resolution be amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-1003/10/31/2023 2:49 PM). Seconded by Councilmember Cordero. Councilmember Kia'āina explained the FD1 amendment.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Councilmember Kia'āina stated that she introduced the Resolution at the request of the Native Hawaiian Community. She explained that November 23, 2023 will be the 30<sup>th</sup> anniversary of the enactment into law of the Apology Resolution and noted that a lot of progress has been made at the Federal and State levels since 1993 as described in the Resolution. Councilmember Kia'āina wanted to have the City on record as acknowledging what happened in 1993, encouraging the Federal Government to continue to provide reconciliation to the Native Hawaiian Community, and also for the City and State to consider ways to help.

Resolution 23-255 was amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-1003/10/31/2023 2:49 PM).

- AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS 9.
- NOES: None.

Council Rule 19-G relating to 48-hour notice was waived.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Committee Report 312 and Resolution 23-255, FD1 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

- M-587 Testimony on Resolution 23-255
- Note: Earlier in the meeting, Committee Report 316 and Resolution 23-222 were adopted. See page 19. Committee Report 318 and Resolution 23-226 were adopted. See page 20. Committee Report 319 and Resolution 23-246 were adopted. See page 20.

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-257 – COMMITTEE REPORT 320

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF AIRFARE VALUED AT \$10,541.47 TO THE CITY FROM HAWAIIAN AIRLINES FOR CITY EMPLOYEES TO TRAVEL TO MAUI TO ASSIST IN THE RESPONSE TO THE AUGUST 2023 WEST MAUI WILDFIRES.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 320 and Resolution 23-257 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

The following individual testified:

Angela Young, CARES (Support)

Committee Report 320 and Resolution 23-257 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# ADOPTION

# RESOLUTION 23-210 - COMMITTEE REPORT 314

RESOLUTION URGING THE HAWAI'I STATE LEGISLATURE TO ESTABLISH A POLICY THAT PROVIDES PARTIAL STATE FUNDING IN PERPETUITY FOR ANY NEW STATE MANDATE THAT IS IMPOSED UPON THE CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU'S FIRST RESPONDERS.

Councilmember Okimoto moved that Committee Report 314 and Resolution 23-210 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Tulba.

There was no public testimony.

Councilmember Tupola stated that she got a commitment from a State legislator that they would introduce a measure for the 50/50 split for traffic violations for the County and the State. She stated that when there are laws that are not followed or enforced, it becomes lawless because it is considered just suggestions because it is not implemented. Councilmember Tupola stated that the legislators are all concerned for the safety of their communities. She noted that the Resolution states that when laws are passed that deal with first responders, their jobs need to be funded.

Committee Report 314 and Resolution 23-210 were adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communications:

CC-276 Disclosure of Interest Statement submitted by Councilmember Tupola. M-578 Testimony on Resolution 23-210

Note: Earlier in the meeting, Committee Report 315 and Resolution 23-213 were adopted. See page 21.

# BALANCE OF COMMITTEE REPORTS

- ZONCR-292Granting a 60-day extension of time for Bill 50, CD1 –<br/>Relating to the transit-oriented development special district.<br/>(Deadline: 11/23/23 + 60 days)ZONCR-293Granting a 60-day extension of time for Bill 51, CD1 –
- Relating to the rezoning of land situated at Halawa, Oʻahu, Hawaiʻi. (Deadline: 11/23/23 + 60 days)
- <u>ZONCR-294</u> Granting a 60-day extension of time for <u>Bill 52</u> Relating to large dwellings. (Deadline: 11/29/23 + 60 days)
- ZONCR-295Granting a 60-day extension of time for Bill 53 Relating to<br/>registration requirements for bed and breakfast homes and<br/>transient vacation units. (Deadline: 11/29/23 + 60 days)

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Balance of Committee Reports, as listed above, be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

There was no public testimony.

The Balance of Committee Reports was adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

# UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business.

## **NEW BUSINESS**

# ADOPTION RESOLUTION 23-265, FD1

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GIFT OF TUITION, TRANSPORTATION, MEALS, AND LODGING, VALUED AT \$37,600, TO THE CITY FROM THE BLOOMBERG HARVARD CITY LEADERSHIP INITIATIVE FOR A MEMBER FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR'S OFFICE, THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, THE DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES, AND THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND PERMITTING TO PARTICIPATE IN THE "MANAGING TALENT IN CITY GOVERNMENT: RECRUITING, RETAINING AND SUPPORTING EMPLOYEES" PROGRAM IN CAMBRIDGE, MASSACHUSETTS, FROM OCTOBER 29 TO NOVEMBER 3, 2023.

Resolution 23-265 was waived to the Council floor by the Chair of the Executive Matters and Legal Affairs Committee (CC-278).

The following amendment was posted on the agenda:

Resolution 23-265, Proposed FD1

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Resolution 23-265 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Resolution be amended to the posted FD1. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero. Councilmember Kia'āina explained the FD1 amendment.

There was no public testimony.

Resolution 23-265 was amended to the posted FD1.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9.

NOES: None.

Resolution 23-265, FD1 was adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

NOES: None.

Related communication:

CC-278 Councilmember Tyler Dos Santos-Tam

Note: Earlier in the meeting, Resolution 23-266 was adopted. See page 22.

# ADOPTION

RESOLUTION 23-268, FD1

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE 2024 HAWAI'I STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES LEGISLATIVE PACKAGE.

The following amendment was handcarried to the meeting:

Resolution 23-268, Proposed FD1 (OCS2023-0996/10/30/2023 10:46 AM)

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that Resolution 23-268 be adopted. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero.

Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Resolution be amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0996/10/30/2023 10:46 AM). Seconded by Councilmember Cordero. Councilmember Kia'āina explained the FD1 amendment.

There was no public testimony.

Councilmember Kia'āina encouraged the City Council to consider what the priorities are at the beginning of the Legislative session. She noted that the Administration gets invited to the Legislature to present their priorities and that the City Council should have a conversation with them before they present to the Legislature to let them know what the Council's priorities are and then the City Council can independently present their priorities to the State Legislature.

Councilmember Tupola stated that she would like to know how the City Council will communicate to the Legislature what the priorities are. She stated that there are a handful of Federal things that should be included and presented to the congressional delegation in the event that their help is needed.

Chair Waters stated that only two councilmembers can discuss a measure because of the Sunshine law and suggested that his office or the Office of Council Services can coordinate that. He suggested that the Council can work on a Honolulu package that can be sent over to the Legislature.

Councilmember Cordero suggested that measures can be put together by subject matter Committees. She also added that when the Administration submits their package it is for the entire City and County of Honolulu and that the Legislative Branch can put together their own.

Resolution 23-268 was amended to the handcarried FD1 (OCS2023-0996/10/30/2023 10:46 AM).

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Council Rule 19-G relating to 48-hour notice was waived.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Resolution 23-268, FD1 was adopted.

AYES: CORDERO, DOS SANTOS-TAM, KIA'ĀINA, OKIMOTO, SAY, TULBA, TUPOLA, WEYER, WATERS – 9. NOES: None.

Related communication:

M-591 Testimony on Resolution 23-268

# COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE/EXECUTIVE SESSION

There was no Executive Session.

# ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councilmember Weyer noted that the Wahiawa Veterans' Day parade will be held on Saturday, November 11, 2023 at 10 a.m., followed by Kokua for Maui at Ka'ala Elementary School from 11:30 a.m. to 4 p.m. where there will be activities and Kapena will be performing.

Councilmember Tupola invited everyone to an on-line Town Hall with the Department of Community Services to discuss GIA grant application on Thursday, November 2, 2023 at 6 p.m. For more information or to get the link for the webinar, please call her office.

# ADJOURNMENT

At 2:37 p.m., Councilmember Kia'āina moved that the Council stand adjourned until Wednesday, December 6, 2023, at 10 a.m. Seconded by Councilmember Cordero and there being no objections from the 9 members present, it was so ordered by the Chair.

Respectfully submitted,

GLEN I. TAKAHASHI City Clerk

ју

DATE APPROVED:

December 6, 2023